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CAPSULE SUMMARY

PG: 76A849

Soper House

5600 Auth Road

Suitland, Prince George’s County, Maryland
c. 1910

Private

The Soper House was constructed ¢. 1910 at 5600 Auth Road in Suitland, Maryland when the area
was primarily rural and undeveloped. Erected during the ownership tenure of Margaret Virginia
Soper, the dwelling and its associated property were likely rented to area farmers while the Soper
family was residing in Washington, DC. Following the death of Margaret Virginia Soper in 1928,
the property was inherited by her son, Ernest W. Soper. Later that year. after 41 years of Soper
ownership, he conveyed the property to Mary Shipley Ryon. In January 1929, the property was
conveyed to farmer Thomas E. Wood and his wife, Linda V. Wood (nee Soper). The Woods came
from a locally-prominent family in the Suitland and Camp Springs area and Linda V. Wood is also
associated with the Thornton-Wood Farmstead (PG: 76A-024). In 1937, the Woods conveyed 57.5
acres of the tract to Salvatore Marescalco, an [talian immigrant. In the years that followed.
Marescalco parceled off the land to various members of his family, including Nicholas Marescalco
who constructed the Art Moderne Marescalco House at 5516 Auth Road (PG: 76A-021). By 1954,
the property had been reduced to 10,764-square feet and was later conveyed to Carmello Intelisano.
Since 1962 the property has changed hands several times. but has been owned by Alda Irene
Douglas since 1982. The property represents the mid-twentieth-century transformation ot Suitland

from a vast, rural expanse to a suburban landscape.

This two-story, four-bay single-family dwelling (now twin dwelling) is two-bays deep. Set on a solid
foundation and constructed of brick; both laid in six-course. American-bond, this building is
veneered with stone on the fagade (south elevation). Standing-seam metal covers the front-gable
roof, which is accented with raking wood boards. Two single-leaf openings mark the fagade (south
elevation) and each holds a flush wood door with a single-light. Paired 4/4 wood-sash are located in
the easternmost bay of the facade and paired 1/1 vinyl-sash are in the westernmost bay. Each first
story opening is complemented by a Permastone sill. Three openings pierce the second story of the
facade, with the central opening being the smallest, and each holds a 6/6 wood-sash window. A
small 6/6 wood-sash window also fenestrates the upper gable end. The second story openings and

upper gable end opening have Permastone sill and keyed Permastone lintels.
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1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name)
historic Soper House
other

2. Location

street and number 5600 Auth Road __not for publication
city, town Suitland __vicinity
county Prince George's

3. Owner of Prope rty (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Alda Irene Douglas
street and number 5600 Auth Road telephone
city, town Suitland state  MD zip code 20746-4001

4. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Prince George's County Courthouse liber 5499 folio 781

city, town Upper Marlboro tax map 89 tax parcel 174 tax ID number 06 0488304

5. Primary Location of Additional Data

Contributing Resource in National Register District
Contributing Resource in Local Historic District
Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Recorded by HABS/HAER
Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT
X Other:__Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission. Prince George's County Planning Department

6. Classification

Category Ownership Current Function Resource Count
district public agriculture landscape Contributing Noncontributing
X building(s) X private commerce/trade recreation/culture 1 1 buildings

structure both defense religion sites

site X __domestic social structures

object education transportation objects
funerary work in progress 1 1 Total
government unknown
health care vacant/not in use Number of Contributing Resources
industry other: previously listed in the Inventory

0




7. Description Inventory No. PG: 76A%49

Condition
__ excellent ____ deteriorated
X_good ___ruins
__ fair __ altered

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it
exists today.

The Soper House is located at 5600 Auth Road in Suitland, Maryland. The property is flanked by Auth
Road to the southwest and by Gloria Road to the northwest. The property includes a single-family dwelling
(now twin dwelling), which is oriented to face south. The property slopes to the northeast and features
mature trees and shrubs. A concrete walkway connects the front porch of the dwelling to Auth Road.
Gravel parking pads enter the property from Auth Road and are located southwest and southeast of the
dwelling. A metal chain-link fence follows Gloria Road before heading southeast to enclose the backyard
of the property. A wood fence partially lines the southeastern boundary. In addition to the primary
dwelling, this property includes a prefabricated shed.

DWELLING

Constructed c¢. 1910, this two-story, four-bay single-family dwelling (now twin dwelling) is two-bays deep.
Set on a solid foundation and constructed of brick; both laid in six-course, American-bond, this building is
veneered with stone on the fagade (south elevation). Standing-seam metal covers the front-gable roof,
which is accented with raking wood boards.

Two single-leaf openings mark the fagade (south elevation) and each holds a tlush wood door with a
single-light. Paired 4/4 wood-sash are located in the easternmost bay of the facade and paired 1/1 vinyl-
sash are in the westernmost bay. Each first story opening is complemented by a Permastone sill. Three
openings pierce the second story of the fagade, with the central opening being the smallest, and each holds
a 6/6 wood-sash window. A small 6/6 wood-sash window also fenestrates the upper gable end. The second
story openings and upper gable end opening have Permastone sill and keyed Permastone lintels.

A one-story. full-width screened porch extends from the fagade and is set on a solid brick foundation. The
shed roof is covered with asphalt shingles and is finished with overhanging eaves and raking wood boards.
Brick posts support the roof. The solid balustrade is covered with plywood.

Two three-light wood windows with rowlock brick sills fenestrate the west and east (side) elevations. The
southernmost bay of the first story holds a 1/1 vinyl-sash and the northernmost opening holds a 6/6 wood-
sash. The end bays of the second story hold 6/6 wood-sash windows and the central bay holds a 4/4 wood-
sash window. Each opening has a rowlock brick sill.

The foundation of the rear (north) elevation holds a single-leaf, paneled wood door with lights and is
flanked by three-light wood awning windows, each with a rowlock brick sill. Three openings pierce the
first and second stories and each holds a 6/6 wood-sash window with a rowlock brick sill. The central bay
of the second story was once a single-leaf opening but has been altered. A single 4/4 wood-sash window
marks the upper gable end and has a rowlock brick sill.
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PREFABRICATED SHED

A one-story, three-bay prefabricated shed, constructed c. 1990, is located in the eastern corner of the
property. An elevated solid poured concrete slab serves as the foundation and was likely used by an earlier
building. The wood-frame shed is clad with T1-11 siding and is accented by wood corner boards. Asphalt
shingles cover the side-gable roof. The fagade (southwest elevation) is marked by double-leaf T1-11 doors
and are flanked by four-light fixed metal windows.

INTEGRITY

The Soper House, constructed c. 1910, at 5600 Auth Road presents a moderate level of integrity of
materials, workmanship, and design. This building retains its original rectangular plan, however, the
integrity of materials and workmanship has been affected but not compromised by the use of non-historic
Permastone veneer as cladding material, the enclosure of the front porch. and replacement vinyl-sash
windows. This is a common, and reversible, mid-twentieth-century alteration. Integrity of design has been
affected because the dwelling has been rehabilitated as a twin dwelling. Sited on a 0.247-acre parcel in
Suitland. Maryland. this dwelling presents a moderate level of integrity of setting. feeling. and association
because the rural landscape was heavily suburbanized in the 1950s and 1960s. Although Gloria Drive was
created between 1965 and 1980, the dwelling retains integrity of location.

Due to its recent construction date. the c¢. 1990 prefabricated shed is a non-contributing resource.

Overall, the Soper House and its associated resource, maintains a moderate level of integrity.




8. Significance Inventory No. PG: 76A49

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below
__1600-1699 ___ agriculture ___economics __ health/medicine __ performing arts
__1700-1799 __ archeology __ education __industry __ philosophy
_1800-1899 X architecture __engineering ___invention __ politics/government
X 1900-1999 _ art ___ entertainment/ __ landscape architecture __ religion
___ 2000- ___ commerce recreation _ law __science

__ communications __ ethnic heritage __literature __ social history

__ community planning  __ exploration/ __ maritime history __ transportation

__ conservation settlement __ military X other: Local History
Specific dates c. 1910 Architect/Builder  Unknown

Construction dates c¢. 1910

Evaluation for:

National Register Maryland Register not evaluated

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form — see manual.)

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Soper House was constructed c¢. 1910 at 5600 Auth Road in Suitland, Maryland when the area was
primarily rural and undeveloped. Erected during the ownership tenure of Margaret Virginia Soper. the
dwelling and its associated property weic likely rented to area farmers while the Soper family was residing
in Washington. DC. Following the death of Margaret Virginia Soper in 1928, the property was inherited by
her son, Ernest W. Soper. Later that year. after 41 years of Soper ownership. he conveyed the property to
Mary Shipley Ryon. In January 1929, the property was conveyed to farmer Thomas E. Wood and his wife.
Linda V. Wood (nee Soper). The Woods came from a locally-prominent family in the Suitland and Camp
Springs area and Linda V. Wood is also associated with the Thornton-Wood Farmstead (PG: 76A-024). In
1937, the Woods conveyed 57.5 acres of the tract to Salvatore Marescalco, an [talian immigrant. In the
years that followed, Marescalco parceled off the land to various members of his family. including Nicholas
Marescalco who constructed the Art Moderne Marescalco House at 5516 Auth Road (PG: 76A-021). By
1954. the property had been reduced to 10,764-square feet and was later conveyed to Carmello Intelisano.
Since 1962 the property has changed hands several times, but has been owned by Alda Irene Douglas since
1982. The property represents the mid-twentieth-century transformation of Suitland from a vast, rural
expanse to a suburban landscape.

HISTORIC CONTEXT

The Soper House is located in Suitland, Maryland. Suitland gained its name from Colonel Samuel Taylor
Suit, who was a nineteenth century businessman and entrepreneur. His farmstead “Suitland™ was originally
located near the present intersection of Suitland and Silver Hill Roads. By the turn of the twentieth century,
the village of Suitland had grown to include a general store, post office, churches, and several houses, but
remained primarily rural." The Woods family, along with the Sopers, owned some agricultural land in the

' “Suitland, Maryland,” U.S. Census Bureau, http://www.census.gov/history/www/census_then now/suitland md/ (accessed June 23,
2011).
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Camp Springs and Suitland areas prior to its development in the mid-twentieth century. In fact. the Woods
family operated a seasonal fruit stand at the intersection of MD 5 and Auth Road. for which the area was
named “Woods Corner.” Auth Road was originally known to locals as “Epiphany Lane™ until the 1940s
when it was paved and redesignated William Soper Road.* Development rapidly increased during the mid-
twentieth-century with the construction of the Suitland Federal Center and Andrew’s Air Force Base and
once rural expanses quickly gave over to domestic and commercial development.

The Soper House rests on a (0.247-acre parcel on Auth Road that was once part of a 165-acre tract owned
by Margaret R. Soper. The daughter of Joseph, a planter, and his wife Priscilla. Margaret was born in 1828
in Maryland. The 1880 U.S. Federal Census indicates that Soper was unmarried and was residing with her
parents and two African-American farm hands.” Upon her death in 1887, she willed her 165-acre tract to
Margaret Virginia Soper.4 Margaret Virginia Soper was born c. 1856 and married her husband, George P.
Soper. in 1881. Following their marriage, the Sopers moved to Washington, DC. Here, the 1900 U.S.
Federal Census notes that George was working for the railroad and their sixteen-year-old son. Ernest W.
Soper, was a plumbing apprentice.” The Soper family continued to reside in Washington. DC and by 1920
George was still working as a motorman with the railroad, Margaret was employed as a fitter at a dress
store, and Ernest was a clerk at a grocery store.® It is likely that the Sopers leased their tract of land in
Prince George’'s County to other area farmers.

Following his mother’s death in 1928. Ernest inherited the 165-acre tract of land. By December. he had
conveyed the property to Mary Shipley Ryon of Washington, DC.” Ryon (nee Shipley) was born c¢. 1885
and was a California native. In 1930, she was residing in Washington, DC with her husband. real estate
dealer Norman Eugene Ryon, and their children, Thomas S., David O., and Mary E. Ryon.* She held the
property only for one month before conveying it to Thomas E. Wood and Linda V. Wood.”

Thomas E. Wood was born in Prince George's County in 1878. He married Linda V. Soper. also a
Maryland native. in 1920. By 1930, the couple were working their farm and residing with their seven

* Rita M. Suffness “Marescalco House™ (PG: 76A-21) Maryland Historical Trust State Historic Sites Inventory Form., 1997.

* 1880 U.S. Federal Census, Spaldings, Prince George’s, Maryland, Roll 513, Family History Film 1254513, Page 130A.
Enumeration District 126, Image 0261, Margaret R. Soper.

! Margaret R. Soper to Margaret Virginia Soper, Will Records of Prince George’s County, WAJ 1:497.

* 1900 U.S. Federal Census, Washington, Washington, District of Columbia, Roll T623, Series 158, Page 1A.

Enumeration District 10, Margaret V. Soper.

®1920 U.S. Federal Census, Washington, Washington, District of Columbia, Roll T625, Series 211, Page 4A,

Enumeration District 355, Image 888, Margaret V. Soper.

" Ernest W. Soper to Mary Shipley Ryon, Prince George’s County Land Records, 325:248.

#1930 U.S. Federal Census, Washington, Washington, District of Columbia, Roll 303, Page 12A, Enumeration District 365, Image
601, Mary S. Ryon.

? Mary Shipley Ryon and Norman E. Ryon to Thomas E. Wood and Linda V. Wood, Prince George’s County Land Records, 331:323.
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children, Mary E., Thomas E., Jr., Viola E., John F., Alice P., Richard A.. and William C. Wood. Linda V.
Wood is also associated with the Thornton-Wood Farmstead (PG: 76 A-024), which is located at 4801 Auth
Road in Suitland. Maryland.

In 1937, Thomas and Linda Wood conveyed a 57.5-acre parcel of the tract known as “Golden Rod™ to
Salvatore Marescalco.'" Marescalco was born November 25, 1873 in San Mauro, Italy and emigrated to the
United States in December 1912 from Naples, Italy aboard the Konig Albert." After being processed at
Ellis Island. Marescalco resided in both Frostburg, Maryland and Washington. DC and was employed as a
janitor and laborer. Marescalco registered for the World War [ (1914-1918) draft in Washington, DC and
later became a naturalized citizen in September 1921." Marescalco returned to Italy in May 1922 and came
back to Washington, DC in November of that year aboard the S.S. American with his new wife, Mary
(variously known as Maria and Marie) and her two children, Giovanni (John) and Rosa (Rose) Greco. ages
8 and 6 respectively.” In 1924, he purchased 18 H Street, N.E., for business and residential purposes." In
1930. Marescalco. now employed at a confectionary store, still resided on H Street. N.E.. with his wife,
Mary. and their children. John (Giovanni). Rose. Nickey, Rose Ann, and Domenick."

Nicholas Marescalco is associated with the Marescalco House (PG: 76A-021) which is located at 5516
Auth Road in Camp Springs. He likely purchased the roughly two-acre parcel from his father. Salvatore,
and between 1946 and 1950, he erected his Art Moderne residence with the help of his brother-in-law.
Paris Rizzo."

Following the death of Salvatore (date unknown), the Soper House property was willed to his wite. Mary
Marescalco. A fellow immigrant from Italy, Mary was born in 1896 and came to the United States in 1922.
She died in 1954 at her residence at 5300 Auth Road. In her Last Will and Testament. she bequeathed the
Soper House property to her children. John Greco, Rose Greco Procopio, Nicholas Marescalco, Rose Ann

" Thomas E. Wood and Linda V. Wood to Salvatore Marescalco, Prince George's County Land Records, 474:273.

' -passenger Information for Salvatore Marescalco,” The State of Liberty-Ellis Island Foundation, Inc.. http://www.ellisisland.org/.
(accessed 23 June 2011).

12 Ancestry.com, World War | Draft Registration Cards, 1917-1918 [database on-line], Provo, UT, USA. Ancestry.com, Operations
Inc, 2005; U.S. Passport Applications, 1795-1925, National Archives and Records Administration (NARA), Washington D.C..
Passport Applications, January 2, 1906 - March 31, 1925, ARC Identifier 583830 / MLR Number Al 534, NARA Series M 1490,
Roll #1942, Salvatore Marescalco.

" New York Passenger Lists, 1820-1957, 1922, Microfilm Serial T715, Microfilm Roll T715. Series 3210, Line 1. Page Number 133.
Salvatore Marescalco.

'* “Resident Properties Worth $65,000 Sold,” The Washington Post (1923-

1954), September 7. 1924, http://www.proquest.com/ (accessed June 23, 2011).

151930 U.S. Federal Census, Washington, Washington, District of Columbia, Roll 295, Page 13B, Enumeration District 161,

[mage 526, Salvatore Marsioles.

'8 Rita M. Suffness “Marescalco House” (PG: 76A-21) Maryland Historical Trust State Historic Sites Inventory Form, 1997.
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Marescalco Rizzo. and Domenick Marescalco.'” They held the now 10,764-square foot property for seven
years before conveying it to Carmello Intelisano.” No information regarding Carmello Intelisano could be
located.

In January 1962, Intelisano conveyed the property to Cecil J. Sisk and his wife, Virginia B. Sisk."” No
information regarding the Sisks could be located. The couple deeded the property to Alco Investment
Corporation in June 1962.° By October, the Alco Investment Corporation had conveyed the property to
Donald K. Jackson.*!

In 1966. Keith Investments, Inc.. appointed Robert Lee Gauldin and Amanda Pauline Gauldin trustees of
the property.™ Keith Investments, Inc., was indebted unto Donald K. Jackson for $6,500. In November of
1968, John G. Epaminonda and John F. Oddenino, Jr. were appointed substitute trustees following default
by the Gauldins on their loan.” Epaminonda was a lawyer from Virginia, who in 1961 served as chairman
of the nominating committee of the Falls Church Bar Association.” Epaminonda was active in Arlington
County politics throughout the 1960s. He died on February 22, 1969. Information related to Oddenino was
not located.

In January 1970, the property was sold at public auction to A. R. Tuttle for $500 over the mortgage
amount.” In 1971. Tuttle conveyed the property to Clifford [rwin Franks and his wife. Deanna Driggs
Franks.” Information pertaining to the Franks could not be located. The current owner. Alda Irene
Douglas, was deeded the property from the Franks in 1982.7 Information pertaining to the Alda Irene
Douglas could not be located.

7 Mary Marescalco to John Greco, Rose Greco Procopio, Nicholas Marescalco, Rose Ann Marescalco Rizzo, and Domenick
Marescalco, Will Records of Prince George's County, WCH 2:330.

'® John and Lorraine Greco, Alfonso and Rose Greco Procopio, Nicholas and Jennie Marescalco, Samuel and Rose Ann Marescalco
Rizzo. and Domenick Marescalco to Carmello Intelisano, Prince George’s County Land Records, WWW 2639:614.

" Carmello Intelisano to Cecil J. Sisk and Virginia B. Sisk, Prince George's County Land Records, 2649:10.

* Cecil J. Sisk and Virginia B. Sisk to Alco Investment Corporation, Prince George's County Land Records, 2694:341.

! Alco Investment Corporation to Donald K. Jackson, Prince George's County Land Records, WWW 2755:608.

2 Keith Investments, Inc. to Robert Lee Gauldin and Amanda Pauline Gauldin, trustees, Prince George's County Land Records,
WWW 3394:336.

“* A. R. Tuttle to John G. Epaminonda and John F. Oddenino, Jr., Prince George's County Land Records, WWW 3661:569.

** "Bar Grolup Elects." The Washington Post, Times Herald (1959-1973), November 18, 1961, http://www.proquest.com/ (accessed
June 8,2011).

** John F. Oddenino, Jr., trustee of John J. Epaminonda, to A. R. Tuttle, Prince George's County Land Records, WW W 3801:474.
** A. R. Tuttle to Clifford Irwin Franks and Deanna Driggs Franks, Prince George's County Land Records, WWW 3955:129.

7 Clifford Irwin Franks and Deanna Driggs Franks to Alda Irene Douglas, Prince George’s County Land Records, NLP 5499:781.
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10. Geographical Data

Acreage of surveyed property 0.247
Acreage of historical setting 57.5
Quadranglie name Anacostia Quadrangle scale: 1:24.000

Verbal boundary description and justification

The Soper House is located on a 0.247-acre parcel. Auth Road forms the southwestern boundary of the property. The northwestern
boundary follows Gloria Road. The northestern boundary is lined by a metal chain-link fence and the southeastern boundary is
edged by a metal chain-link fence and a wood fence. The Soper House has been associated with Parcel 174 as noted on Tax Map
89 since its construction c. [910.

11. Form Prepared by

name/titie Maria Dayton and Paul Weishar/Architectural Historians

organization EHT Traceries, Inc. for M-NCPPC date August 2011
street & number 1121 Fifth Street, NW telephone  (202) 393-1199
city or town Washington state DC

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature
to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,
1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

return to: Marytand Historical Trust
Maryland Department of Planning
100 Community Place
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023
410-514-7600
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CHAIN OF TITLE
PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY LAND RECORDS

Wwill Margaret R. Soper to Margaret Virginia Soper.
WAJ 1:497

June 12, 1887

Will Margaret Virginia Soper to Erest W. Soper.
Unknown

February 28, 1928

Deed Ernest W. Soper to Mary Shipley Ryon. (165 acres)

325:248

December 17, 1928

Deed Mary Shipley Ryon and Norman E. Ryon to Thomas E. Wood and Linda V. Wood. (165 acres)
331:323

January 24, 1929

Deed Thomas E. Wood and Linda V. Wood to Salvatore Marescalco. (Part of a tract called ~Golden
474:273 Rod”, containing 57.50 acres)

April 8. 1937

Will Last will and testament of Mary Marescalco, deceased May 23, 1954.

WCH 2:330

July 20, 1954

Deed John and Lorraine Greco, Alfonso and Rose Greco Procopio, Nicholas and Jennie Marescalco,
WWW 2639:614 Samuel and Rose Ann Marescalco Rizzo, and Domenick Marescalco (devisees under the last will
July 15, 1961 and testament of Mary Marescalco) to Carmello Intelisano.

Deed Carmello Intelisano to Cecil J. Sisk and Virginia B. Sisk.

2649:10

January 31. 1962

Deed Cecil J. Sisk and Virginia B. Sisk to Alco Investment Corporation.
2694:341

June 14, 1962

Deed Donald K. Jackson to Keith Investments, Inc.

WWW 3394:333
August 30, 1966
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Deed of Trust Keith Investments, Inc. to Robert Lee Gauldin and Amanda Pauline Gauldin, trustees of Keith
WWW 3394:336 Investments, Inc.

August 30, 1966

Deed A. R. Tuttle to John G. Epaminonda and John F. Oddenino, Jr., substituted trustees of Keith
WWW 3661:569 [nvestments, Inc.

November 22, 1968

Trustees Deed John F. Oddenino, Jr., surviving substitute trustee, to A, R. Tuttle. (Sold at public auction)
WWW 3801:474
January 30. 1970

Deed A. R. Tuttle to Clifford Irwin Franks and Deanna Driggs Franks.
WWW 3955:129
May 28, 1971
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